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NEXT STEPS 

Healthy North Carolina 
2030: Mid-Cycle Progress 

Midway through the Healthy North Carolina 2030 

(HNC 2030) decade, the state has made meaningful 
progress in several indicators, while indicators that 
are more deeply rooted in structural, economic, and 
social conditions remain stagnant or are worsening. 
This landscape of progress and ongoing challenges 
highlights both the impact of recent investments and 
the urgency of course correction as the state moves 

from assessment to action under the 2026 North 
Carolina State Health Improvement Plan (SHIP). 

Several indicators demonstrate sustained or 
emerging improvement. Insurance coverage 
among adults under age 65 has increased following 
Medicaid expansion, contributing to gains in early 
prenatal care and access to preventive services. 
Long-term declines in teen births and tobacco 
use continue (among teens and adults), reflecting 
the cumulative impact of public health policy, 
community-based prevention, and health education 
efforts. Employment levels have largely rebounded 
from the pandemic, and high school graduation 
rates show gradual improvement. Together, these 
trends suggest that coordinated policy action 
and sustained prevention strategies can produce 
measurable population-level gains. 

At the same time, a substantial set of indicators 
shows limited or uneven progress. Poverty rates, 
access to healthy food and opportunities for physical 
activity have not improved consistently, particularly 
in rural and historically marginalized communities. 
While educational indicators such as third-
grade reading proficiency and short-term school 
suspensions show partial recovery from pandemic 
disruptions, they continue to reflect persistent racial 
and geographic disparities. Meanwhile, although 

life expectancy has risen slightly from its pandemic 
low point, it has not returned to pre-COVID levels. 
Although infant and suicide mortality rates show 
modest gains in some populations these indicators 
remain unacceptably high in others.  

More concerning, several HNC 2030 indicators 
are moving in the wrong direction. Drug overdose 
deaths remain elevated, driven largely by synthetic 
opioids. Excessive drinking has increased and 
chronic disease indicators — including obesity, 
diabetes, cardiovascular disease, stroke, chronic 
kidney disease, and asthma — continue to rise. 

Housing affordability has declined, contributing 
to severe housing problems and compounding 
health risks. Hospital readmission rates for 
several Medicare conditions remain stagnant or 
have worsened, reflecting system strain, care 
coordination challenges, and unmet social needs. 
These trends highlight the interconnected nature 
of behavioral health, chronic disease, housing, and 
economic stressors, many of which were intensified 
by the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent 
workforce and cost-of-living pressures. 

Taken together, the mid-cycle assessment makes clear 

that North Carolina cannot achieve HNC 2030 goals 
solely through clinical care and individual behavior 

change. Progress is strongest where policy, systems, 
and funding are aligned, and weakest where upstream 

determinants — such as housing, income, education, 
transportation, and environmental conditions — 

remain unaddressed. The 2026 North Carolina State 
Health Improvement Plan (SHIP) therefore represents 

a critical opportunity to move  from measurement to 

coordinated action, focusing on a smaller set of high-
leverage priorities that address root causes, reduce 

disparities, and support sustainable improvement. 
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NEXT STEPS 

Mapping HNC 2030 Indicators to Priority 
Opportunities for the 2026 North Carolina 
State Health Improvement Plan (NC SHIP) 

The following mapping translates indicator 
performance into strategic opportunity areas for 
the 2026 NC SHIP. These groupings are designed 
to support cross-sector ownership, measurable 
strategies, and alignment with local Community 
Health Assessments (CHAs) and Community Health 
Improvement Plans (CHIPs). 

/ 01 Strengthen Behavioral Health and 
Substance Use Systems 

Indicators driving this priority 
• Drug overdose deaths 
• Excessive drinking 

• Suicide mortality 

• Prevalence of mental health conditions/distress 

• Hospital readmissions (behavioral health–related) 

Opportunity for the 2026 SHIP 
Focus on prevention, treatment access, workforce 
capacity, and recovery-oriented systems of care. 
Emphasize integration of behavioral health into 
primary care, crisis response infrastructure, and 
community-based supports, with explicit attention 
to rural access and high-risk populations. 

/ 02 Reverse Chronic Disease Trends Through 
   Upstream Action 

Indicators driving this priority 
• Obesity (adult and youth) 
• Diabetes (incidence and prevalence) 
• Cardiovascular disease and stroke 
• Chronic kidney disease 

• Asthma 

Opportunity for the 2026 SHIP 
Shift from downstream disease management to 
upstream prevention by aligning food systems, 
physical activity, housing quality, environmental 
health, and chronic disease prevention strategies. 
Prioritize community-level conditions that facilitate 
affordable healthy choices. 

/ 03 Improve Housing Stability and 
 Community Infrastructure 

Indicators driving this priority 
• Severe housing problems 
• Poverty 

• Hospital readmissions 
• Life expectancy 

Opportunity for the 2026 SHIP 
Elevate housing as a core health strategy. Strengthen 
partnerships across housing, transportation, 
economic development, and health sectors. Build on 

lessons learned from time-limited pilots to develop 
sustainable approaches that address affordability, 
quality, and stability of housing. 

/ 04 Advance Maternal, Infant, and 
Family Health 

Indicators driving this priority 
• Infant mortality 

• Early prenatal care 

• Maternal health indicators 

• Teen births 
• Life expectancy 

Opportunity for the 2026 SHIP 
Prioritize maternal and infant health as a 
foundational investment in long-term population 
health. Expand culturally responsive care, 
workforce support, care navigation, and 

community-based services, particularly in 

regions with persistent disparities. 
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/ 05 Promote Educational Success and 
 Youth Well-Being 

Indicators driving this priority 
• Third-grade reading proficiency 

• Short-term suspensions 
• Adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) 
• Youth tobacco use 

Opportunity for the 2026 SHIP 
North Carolina can strengthen outcomes for 
infants, children and youth by better aligning early 
care, education, public health, and family support 
systems to promote early childhood development 
and social emotional learning. Emphasizing 
relational health and resilience across infancy, 
childhood and adolescence, through trauma-
informed, prevention-oriented approaches, shifts 
the focus from punitive responses to supportive 
interventions that foster long-term health and 
well-being. 

/ 06 Sustain and Leverage Gains in Health     
 Care Access 

Indicators driving this priority 
• Uninsured rate 
• Population per primary care clinician 
• Early prenatal care 

Opportunity for the 2026 SHIP 
Protect and build upon recent gains by 

addressing provider shortages, strengthening 
care coordination, and reducing access barriers 
such as transportation and language. Ensure that 
coverage translates into meaningful, timely, and 
high-quality care across all communities.  

Implications for Action 

The 2026 NC SHIP should focus on fewer, higher-
impact priorities, each supported by: 

• Clear population-level outcomes 

• Cross-sector strategies that address root causes 

• Shared accountability among state, local, and 
community partners 

• Performance measures that track progress and 
gaps in health 

By aligning SHIP priorities with the indicators most 
in need of course correction, North Carolina is able 

to move from mid-cycle assessment to coordinated, 
measurable improvement, ensuring the remainder 
of the HNC 2030 decade delivers healthier conditions 
and better outcomes for all North Carolinians. 
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NEXT STEPS 

2026 North Carolina State Health Improvement Plan 

Priority Framework Aligned to Healthy North Carolina 2030 
(Mid-Cycle Findings) 

SHIP HNC 2030 Indicators Mid-Cycle Strategic Opportunity 
Priority Area Driving Priority Status for 2026 SHIP 

Behavioral Health 
& Substance Use 

Drug Overdose Deaths; 
Excessive Drinking; Suicide 
Mortality; Mental Health 
Prevalence; Behavioral Health– 
Related Hospital Readmissions 

Worsening Strengthen prevention, treatment, crisis 
response, and recovery systems; expand 
workforce capacity; integrate behavioral 
health into primary care; prioritize rural 
and high-risk populations 

Chronic Disease Obesity (Adult & Youth); Worsening Shift upstream to address food access, 
Prevention & Diabetes; Cardiovascular physical activity, environmental 
Management Disease; Stroke; Chronic Kidney 

Disease; Asthma 
conditions, and prevention; align public 
health, health care, and community 
systems to slow disease progression 

Housing Stability 
& Community 
Infrastructure 

Severe Housing Problems; 
Poverty; Life Expectancy; 
Hospital Readmissions 

Worsening/
Stagnant 

Elevate housing as a health strategy; 
strengthen cross-sector partnerships 
(housing, transportation, economic 
development); pursue sustainable 
models beyond time-limited pilots 

Maternal, Infant Infant Mortality; Early Prenatal Mixed Expand culturally responsive care, 
& Family Health Care; Teen Births; Maternal 

Health Indicators; Life 
Expectancy 

workforce supports, and navigation 
models; focus on regions and 
populations with persistent disparities 

Educational Third Grade Reading Mixed Promote early childhood development, 
Success & Youth Proficiency; Short-Term trauma-informed approaches, and 

Well-Being Suspensions; Adverse 
Childhood Experiences (ACEs); 
Youth Tobacco Use 

supportive school environments; align 
education, public health, and family 
support systems 

Health Care Access Uninsured (Under 65); Primary Improving Sustain Medicaid expansion gains; 
& System Capacity Care Clinician Availability; 

Early Prenatal Care 
address provider shortages, care 
coordination, transportation, and 
language access to ensure coverage 
translates into care 
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World Population Review. U.S. population rankings. 2025. https://worldpopulationreview.com/states 
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https://www.wsj.com/livecoverage/stock-market-tariffs-trade-war-04-04-2025/card/what-the-jobs-report-means-for-the-federal-reserve-dIlmm4CuyXU2whFHA25X?mod=author_content_page_5_pos_19
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https://worldpopulationreview.com/states
https://www.eia.gov/states/NC/overview
https://www.eia.gov/state/data.php?sid=NC
https://www.census.gov
https://www.bls.gov/oes
https://www.bls.gov/web/laus/laumstrk.htm
https://www.bls.gov/news.release/archives/cpi_07132022.htm
https://www.bea.gov
https://ssrn.com/abstract=4117830
https://taceconomics.com/en/us-tariffs-impact-global-economy-2025
https://www.seia.org
https://www.commerce.nc.gov/grants-incentives/community-housing-grants
https://www.commerce.nc.gov/data-tools-reports/labor-market-data-tools
https://www.commerce.nc.gov
https://ncbudget.org
https://nlihc.org
https://www.myfuturenc.org
https://www.myfuturenc.org
https://www.myfuturenc.org
https://www.imf.org
https://fred.stlouisfed.org
https://www.epi.org
https://edpnc.com
https://datausa.io
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Military Profile 

Carolina Demography. NC veterans 2024 snapshot. Nov. 13, 2025. 
https://carolinademography.cpc.unc.edu/2025/11/13/nc-veterans-2024-snapshot/ 

Defense Alliance of North Carolina. North Carolina defense asset inventory and target industry cluster analysis. North Carolina 
Military Affairs Commission, 2020.

          https://ies.ncsu.edu/wp-content/uploads/sites/15/2020/06/NCDefenseAssetInventor26Web_2020Feb26.pdf 

Headquarters and Support Battalion. Headquarters and Support Battalion — Marine Corps Base Camp Lejeune. U.S. Marine 
Corps. https://www.lejeune.marines.mil/Units/Headquarters-and-Support-Bn/utm/ 

Marine Corps Installations East. Home — Marine Corps Installations East. U.S. Marine Corps. https://www.mcieast.marines.mil/ 

Marine Corps Installations East. Economic impact study: Camp Lejeune and Marine Corps Air Station New River. 2021. https:// 
www.mcieast.marines.mil/Portals/33/Documents/G7/2021%20MCIEAST%20Economic%20Impact%20Book.pdf 

Marine Corps Installations East. MCIEAST economic impact brochure. 2023. https://www.mcieast.marines.mil/Portals/33/ 
Documents/G7/2023-MCIEAST-Economic-Impact_Brochure%20-%20Trifold%20-%20FINAL%20-%20FINAL%20-%20 
FINAL%205%20NOV%2024.pdf?ver=0CQ32aF35Br1VjX1zPwsug%3D%3D 

Marine Corps Installations East. MCIEAST economic impact: Camp Lejeune (FY 2023) fact sheet. U.S. Marine Corps, 2023. 

Military Installations. Seymour Johnson Air Force Base: Base overview and information. U.S. Department of Defense. 
https://installations.militaryonesource.mil/in-depth-overview/seymour-johnson-afb 

Military OneSource. MCAS Cherry Point: Installation overview and information. U.S. Department of Defense. 
https://installations.militaryonesource.mil/military-installation/mcas-cherry-point 

Military OneSource. MCAS Cherry Point: In-depth overview. 2024. 
https://installations.militaryonesource.mil/in-depth-overview/mcas-cherry-point 

Military OneSource. Seymour Johnson Air Force Base: In-depth overview. 2024. 
https://installations.militaryonesource.mil/in-depth-overview/seymour-johnson-afb 

MyBaseGuide. Largest U.S. Coast Guard bases by land area and population. 2025. 
https://mybaseguide.com/largest-coast-guard-bases 

National Guard Bureau, Office of the General Counsel. Domestic operations law and policy handbook. 3rd ed., 2024. 
https://www.tagtoolkit.org/blog-2-1/domestic-operations-law-and-policy 

National Veterans Homeless Support. Military to civilian life. https://nvhs.org/veteran-resources/military-to-civilian-life/ 

North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs. USDVA medical facilities: Open facilities list. 
https://www.milvets.nc.gov/documents/files/medical-facilities/open 

North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs. Military bases in North Carolina: Fort Bragg. 
https://www.milvets.nc.gov/benefits-services/military-bases-north-carolina 

North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs. Military installations impact. https://www.milvets.nc.gov/ 

North Carolina Department of Commerce and North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs. Military economic 
impact on North Carolina. October 2022. https://www.commerce.nc.gov/report-military-economic-impact-north-carolina 

North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs. Military installations and economic impact in North Carolina. 2025. 
https://www.ncsl.org/military-and-veterans-affairs/militarys-impact-on-state-economies 

North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs. North Carolina Veterans Insights Report. 2025. 
https://www.milvets.nc.gov/north-carolina-veterans-insight-report/open 
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https://nvhs.org/veteran-resources/military-to-civilian-life
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https://mybaseguide.com/largest-coast-guard-bases
https://installations.militaryonesource.mil/in-depth-overview/seymour-johnson-afb
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https://www.mcieast.marines.mil
https://www.lejeune.marines.mil/Units/Headquarters-and-Support-Bn/utm
https://ies.ncsu.edu/wp-content/uploads/sites/15/2020/06/NCDefenseAssetInventor26Web_2020Feb26.pdf
https://carolinademography.cpc.unc.edu/2025/11/13/nc-veterans-2024-snapshot
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Our NC Military. Defense is the No. 2 economic sector in North Carolina. 
https://ourncmilitary.nc.gov/defense-2-economic-sector-north-carolina 

Our NC Military. Honor veterans by hiring veterans. https://ourncmilitary.nc.gov/honor-veterans-hiring-veterans 

Our NC Military. Military economic impact on North Carolina. 2022. 
https://ourncmilitary.nc.gov/military-economic-impact-nc-2022/open 

United States Coast Guard. Base Elizabeth City. 2024. 
https://www.dcms.uscg.mil/Our-Organization/Director-of-Operational-Logistics-DOL/Bases/Base-Elizabeth-City/ 

United States Coast Guard. Air Station Elizabeth City, North Carolina. 
https://www.history.uscg.mil/Browse-by-Topic/Assets/Air/Article/3062021/air-station-elizabeth-city-north-carolina/ 

United States Department of Veterans Affairs. VISN 06. https://department.va.gov/integrated-service-networks/visn-06/ 

Educational Profile 

Child Care Services Association. North Carolina child care landscape report. 2022. https://ncearlyeducationcoalition.org/wp-
content/uploads/2022/05/a_FINAL-WEB_CCSA-2022-Infant-Toddler-Landscape-Statewide-Study.pdf 

Division of Child Development and Early Education. Child care subsidies and early childhood programs in North Carolina. 2023. 
https://ncchildcare.ncdhhs.gov/Portals/0/documents/pdf/2/2023-2024_Statewide.pdf 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Homepage. https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Economic Policy Institute. The cost of child care in North Carolina. 2023. 
https://www.epi.org/child-care-costs-in-the-united-states/#/NC 

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction. Statistical profile of North Carolina public schools. 2023. 
https://www.dpi.nc.gov/districts-schools/district-operations/financial-and-business-services/statistical-profile 

North Carolina Department of Public Safety. Education programs in juvenile and adult correctional facilities. 2023. 
https://www.ncdps.gov/division/juvenile-justice/2023-jjdp-annual-report/download 

North Carolina Independent Colleges and Universities. Enrollment and institutional profiles. 2023. 
https://ncicu.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/12/ncicu-2023-2024-annual-report.pdf 

North Carolina State Education Assistance Authority. Opportunity Scholarship Program annual report. 2023.
 https://www.ncseaa.edu/wp-content/uploads/sites/1429/2025/01/2023-2024-Annual-Report-FINAL.pdf 

North Carolina Community College System. Fast facts and enrollment overview. 2023. 
https://www.nccommunitycolleges.edu/about-us/data-reporting/data-dashboards-page/ 

TeachNC. Strengthening North Carolina’s educator pipeline. 2024. https://teachnc.org 

University of North Carolina System. Enrollment dashboard and system overview. 2023.
 https://oira.unc.edu/dashboards/student-enrollment-by-level/ 

WestEd. Sound basic education for all: An action plan for North Carolina. 2019. 
https://www.wested.org/resource/leandro-north-carolina/ 
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https://oira.unc.edu/dashboards/student-enrollment-by-level
https://teachnc.org
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https://www.ncdps.gov/division/juvenile-justice/2023-jjdp-annual-report/download
https://www.dpi.nc.gov/districts-schools/district-operations/financial-and-business-services/statistical-profile
https://www.epi.org/child-care-costs-in-the-united-states/#/NC
https://www.ncdhhs.gov
https://ncchildcare.ncdhhs.gov/Portals/0/documents/pdf/2/2023-2024_Statewide.pdf
https://ncearlyeducationcoalition.org/wp
https://department.va.gov/integrated-service-networks/visn-06
https://www.history.uscg.mil/Browse-by-Topic/Assets/Air/Article/3062021/air-station-elizabeth-city-north-carolina
https://www.dcms.uscg.mil/Our-Organization/Director-of-Operational-Logistics-DOL/Bases/Base-Elizabeth-City
https://ourncmilitary.nc.gov/military-economic-impact-nc-2022/open
https://ourncmilitary.nc.gov/honor-veterans-hiring-veterans
https://ourncmilitary.nc.gov/defense-2-economic-sector-north-carolina
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Health Care Profile 

Atrium Health. “Atrium Health and Best Buy Health Partner to Improve Experience.” Atrium Health Newsroom, July 3, 2023. 
Accessed Jan. 11, 2026. 

Cone Health. “Cone Health Fact Sheet.” Cone Health. Accessed Jan. 11, 2026. 

ECU Health. “About Us.” ECU Health Careers. Accessed Jan. 11, 2026. 

FirstHealth of the Carolinas. “About Us.” FirstHealth. Accessed Jan. 11, 2026. 

GuideStar. “CaroMont Health Services Inc.” Candid/GuideStar. Accessed Jan. 11, 2026. 

Health Resources and Services Administration. Health Professional Shortage Areas data. 2024. 
https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/shortage-area/hpsa-find 

Kaiser Family Foundation. Health insurance coverage of the total population. 2024.
 https://www.kff.org/state-health-policy-data/state-indicator/total-population/ 

Mental Health America. State rankings for mental health access. 2024. 
https://www.mhanational.org/the-state-of-mental-health-in-america/data-rankings/ranking-the-states/ 

North Carolina Association of Free and Charitable Clinics. Homepage. 2024. https://www.ncafcc.org 

North Carolina Community Health Center Association. Homepage. 2024. https://www.ncchca.org/ 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Investment in strengthening North Carolina’s behavioral health crisis 
response system. April 8, 2024. https://www.ncdhhs.gov/news/press-releases/2024/04/08/investment-strengthening-
north-carolinas-behavioral-health-crisis-response-system 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Medicaid expansion. 2025. 
https://medicaid.ncdhhs.gov/north-carolina-expands-medicaid 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Health Service Regulation. Facility licensure and 
regulation. 2025. https://info.ncdhhs.gov/dhsr/ 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Division of State Operated Healthcare Facilities. Overview of state-
operated facilities. 2025. https://www.ncdhhs.gov/divisions/state-operated-healthcare-facilities 

North Carolina General Assembly. Certificate of need overview. 2023. https://webservices.ncleg.gov/ViewDocSiteFile/20035 

North Carolina Office of EMS. EMS programs and services. 2024. https://info.ncdhhs.gov/dhsr/EMS/ems.htm 

North Carolina Oral Health Collaborative. Homepage. 2024. https://oralhealthnc.org 

North Carolina Rural Health Research Program. Homepage. University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, Cecil G. Sheps Center for 
Health Services Research, 2024. https://www.shepscenter.unc.edu/programs-projects/rural-health/ 

Novant Health. “Our Company.” Novant Health. Accessed Jan. 11, 2026. 

UNC Health. “UNC Health Named One of the Top Places to Work in Healthcare.” UNC Health Newsroom, March 24, 2023. 
Accessed Jan. 11, 2026. 

U.S. Census Bureau. Health insurance coverage by state. 2024. https://www.census.gov/topics/health/health-insurance.html 

WakeMed Health & Hospitals. “WakeMed By the Numbers.” WakeMed. Accessed Jan. 11, 2026. 
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Secondary Data 
Population Demographics 
National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2026, Pub. L. No. 119-__ (Dec. 18, 2025) 

North Carolina Commission of Indian Affairs. Map of North Carolina tribal communities. North Carolina Department of 
Administration. https://www.doa.nc.gov/divisions/american-indian-affairs/map-nc-tribal-communities 

North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management. Projected population of the state of North Carolina and its counties, 
July 1, 2024–July 1, 2060 (Vintage 2024): Technical document. Jan. 15, 2025. 

NC Data Portal. NC Data Portal. 2025. https://ncdataportal.org/ 

U.S. Census Bureau. 2020 decennial census, table P8: Race. 2020. https://www2.census.gov/programs-surveys/decennial/2020/data/ 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration. How we define rural. Sept. 2025. 
https://www.hrsa.gov/rural-health/about-us/what-is-rural 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Federal Office of Rural Health 
Policy. FORHP data files. https://www.hrsa.gov/rural-health/about-us/what-is-rural/data-files 

Socioeconomic and Education Data and Health Behavior and Health Outcome Data 
NC Data Portal. NC Data Portal. https://ncdataportal.org/ 

Health Outcomes 
Cancer — All Sites 
American Cancer Society. Cancer facts and figures. 2024. https://www.cancer.org/research/cancer-facts-statistics 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Cancer statistics: United States cancer burden. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/ 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Cancer prevention and screening recommendations. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/dcpc/prevention/ 

National Cancer Institute. State cancer profiles: North Carolina — all cancer sites incidence and mortality. 
https://statecancerprofiles.cancer.gov/ 

North Carolina State Center for Health Statistics. Cancer incidence and mortality overview. 2025. https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/ 

U.S. Cancer Statistics Working Group. U.S. cancer statistics: Data visualizations — all cancer sites. Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention, 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/united-states-cancer-statistics/dataviz/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/ 
cancer/uscs/dataviz/index.htm 

Cancer — Breast Cancer 
American Cancer Society. Breast cancer facts and figures. 2024. https://www.cancer.org/research/cancer-facts-statistics 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. U.S. cancer statistics: Breast cancer statistics. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/breast/statistics 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Breast cancer screening rates and disparities. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/breast/basic_info/screening.htm 

National Cancer Institute. State cancer profiles: North Carolina — breast cancer incidence and mortality. 
https://statecancerprofiles.cancer.gov/ 

North Carolina State Center for Health Statistics. Breast cancer fact sheet. 2025. https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/ 

U.S. Cancer Statistics Working Group. U.S. cancer statistics: Data visualizations — breast cancer. Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention, 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/united-states-cancer-statistics/dataviz/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/ 
cancer/uscs/dataviz/index.htm 
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Cancer — Cervical Cancer 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. HPV-associated cervical cancer statistics. 2024. 

https://www.cdc.gov/united-states-cancer-statistics/publications/hpv-associated-cancers.html 

National Cancer Institute. State cancer profiles: North Carolina — cervical cancer incidence and mortality. 
https://statecancerprofiles.cancer.gov/ 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Breast and Cervical Cancer Control Program. North Carolina BCCCP 
program overview. 2024. https://www.dph.ncdhhs.gov/programs/chronic-disease-and-injury/cancer-prevention-and-control-
branch/nc-cancer-screening-and-support-programs/nc-breast-and-cervical-cancer-control-program 

North Carolina State Center for Health Statistics. Cancer incidence and mortality: Cervical cancer fact sheet. 2024. 
https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/data/ 

U.S. Cancer Statistics Working Group. U.S. cancer statistics: Data visualizations — cervical cancer. Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/united-states-cancer-statistics/dataviz/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/ 
uscs/dataviz/index.htm 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. HPV vaccination coverage among adolescents: United States. 2024.
 https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/74/wr/mm7430a1.htm 

National Cancer Institute. Cervical cancer disparities and social determinants of health. 2023. 
https://www.cancer.gov/about-cancer/understanding/disparities 

American Cancer Society. Cervical cancer facts and figures. 2024. https://www.cancer.org/research/cancer-facts-statistics 

Cancer — Colorectal Cancer 
American Cancer Society. Colorectal cancer facts and figures. 2024. https://www.cancer.org/research/cancer-facts-statistics 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Colorectal cancer statistics. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/colorectal/ 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Colorectal cancer screening: Basic information and guidelines. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/colorectal-cancer/screening/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/colorectal/basic_info/screening/ 

National Cancer Institute. State cancer profiles: North Carolina — colorectal cancer incidence and mortality. 
https://statecancerprofiles.cancer.gov/ 

North Carolina State Center for Health Statistics. Colorectal cancer fact sheet. 2025. https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/ 

U.S. Cancer Statistics Working Group. U.S. cancer statistics: Data visualizations — colorectal cancer. Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention, 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/united-states-cancer-statistics/dataviz/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/ 
cancer/uscs/dataviz/index.htm 

Cancer — Lung Cancer 
American Cancer Society. Lung cancer facts and figures. 2024. https://www.cancer.org/research/cancer-facts-statistics 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Lung cancer statistics. 2024.
           https://www.cdc.gov/lung-cancer/statistics/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/lung/statistics/ 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Screening for lung cancer: Guidelines and recommendations. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/lung-cancer/screening/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/lung/basic_info/screening.htm 

National Cancer Institute. State cancer profiles: North Carolina — lung and bronchus cancer incidence and mortality. 
https://statecancerprofiles.cancer.gov/ 

North Carolina State Center for Health Statistics. Lung cancer fact sheet. 2025. https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/ 

U.S. Cancer Statistics Working Group. U.S. cancer statistics: Data visualizations — lung cancer. Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/united-states-cancer-statistics/dataviz/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/ 
uscs/dataviz/index.htm 
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Cancer — Prostate Cancer 
American Cancer Society. Prostate cancer facts and figures. 2024. https://www.cancer.org/research/cancer-facts-statistics 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Prostate cancer statistics. 2024.https://www.cdc.gov/prostate-cancer/ 
statistics/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/prostate/statistics/ 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Screening and early detection for prostate cancer. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/ 
prostate-cancer/screening/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/prostate/basic_info/screening.htm 

National Cancer Institute. State cancer profiles: North Carolina — prostate cancer incidence and mortality.
 https://statecancerprofiles.cancer.gov/ 

North Carolina State Center for Health Statistics. Prostate cancer fact sheet. 2025. https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/ 

U.S. Cancer Statistics Working Group. U.S. cancer statistics: Data visualizations — prostate cancer. Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention, 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/prostate-cancer/screening/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/ 
prostate/basic_info/screening.htm 

Chronic Conditions 
Diabetes — Incidence 
American Diabetes Association. Statistics about diabetes. 2024. https://diabetes.org/about-diabetes/statistics/about-diabetes 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. National diabetes statistics report. 2024. 
https://archive.cdc.gov/#/details?url=https://www.cdc.gov/diabetes/php/data-research/methods.html 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Diabetes surveillance: Prevalence, incidence, and complications. 2024. 
https://gis.cdc.gov/grasp/diabetes/DiabetesAtlas.html 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Diabetes and chronic disease surveillance in North Carolina. 2024. 
https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Diabetes — Prevalence 
American Diabetes Association. Statistics about diabetes. 2024. https://diabetes.org/about-diabetes/statistics/about-diabetes 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. National diabetes statistics report. 2024. 
https://archive.cdc.gov/#/details?url=https://www.cdc.gov/diabetes/php/data-research/methods.html 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. U.S. diabetes surveillance system. 2024. 
https://gis.cdc.gov/grasp/diabetes/DiabetesAtlas.html 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Diabetes and chronic disease surveillance in North Carolina. 2024. 
https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Heart Disease (Adult) 
American Heart Association. Heart disease and stroke statistics — 2024 update. 2024. 

https://www.ahajournals.org/doi/10.1161/CIR.0000000000001209 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Heart disease facts and disparities. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/heart-disease/data-
research/facts-stats/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/heartdisease/facts.htm 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System: Coronary heart disease prevalence. 
2024. https://www.cdc.gov/brfss 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Cardiovascular disease surveillance and trends in North Carolina. 
2024. https://www.ncdhhs.gov 
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High Cholesterol (Adult) 
American Heart Association. Heart disease and stroke statistics — 2024 update. 2024. 

https://www.ahajournals.org/doi/10.1161/CIR.0000000000001209 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. High cholesterol facts and cardiovascular risk. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/cholesterol 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System: Cholesterol prevalence data. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/brfss 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Cardiovascular and chronic disease surveillance in North Carolina. 
2024. https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Kidney Disease (Adult) 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Chronic kidney disease surveillance and disparities. 2024. 

https://www.cdc.gov/kidneydisease 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Chronic kidney disease in the United States. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/kidney-
disease/php/data-research/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/kidneydisease/publications-resources/ckd-national-facts.html 

National Kidney Foundation. CKD facts and statistics. 2024. https://www.kidney.org/about/kidney-disease-fact-sheet 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Chronic disease surveillance and kidney health in North Carolina. 
2024. https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Adult Asthma 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Asthma data: National prevalence and trends. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/asthma/ 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Most recent asthma surveillance data: Disparities and high-risk populations. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/asthma/asthma_stats/ 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Asthma-related hospitalizations and emergency department visits. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/asthma/healthcare-use/2020/data.htm#:~:text=Number%20and%20rate%20of%20 

emergency,patient%20characteristics%3A%20United%20States%2C%202020l 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. North Carolina asthma program: State asthma surveillance report. 
2023. https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Stroke 
Adult Stroke (Prevalence) 
American Heart Association. Heart disease and stroke statistics — 2024 update. 2024. 

https://www.ahajournals.org/doi/10.1161/CIR.0000000000001209 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Stroke facts, risk factors, and disparities. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/stroke 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System: Stroke prevalence data. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/brfss 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Cardiovascular disease and stroke surveillance in North Carolina. 
2024. https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Stroke Hospitalizations 
American Heart Association. Heart disease and stroke statistics — 2024 update. 2024. 

American Heart Association. Heart disease and stroke statistics — 2024 update. 2024. 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Stroke facts, hospitalization trends, and risk factors. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/stroke 
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Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Stroke hospitalization and emergency department visit data. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/fastats/emergency-department.htm 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Cardiovascular disease and stroke hospitalization trends in North 
Carolina. 2024. https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Mental Health and Substance Use 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Behavioral health statistics and national mental health indicators. 2024.

 https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/fastats/mental-health.htm 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Anxiety and depression trends among U.S. adults. 2024. 
https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/data/nhsr/nhsr213.pdf 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Behavioral health in North Carolina: Mental health trends and 
service utilization. 2024. https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Opioid and substance use data dashboard. 2024. 
https://www.ncdhhs.gov/opioid-epidemic 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. National Survey on Drug Use and Health: Mental health and 
substance use findings. 2024. https://www.samhsa.gov/data 

Injury and Child Mortality 
Injury (All Ages) 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. WISQARS fatal and nonfatal injury data. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/injury/wisqars 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Injury data and statistics. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/injury 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Injury and violence prevention data and reports. 2024. 
https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

Child Mortality 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. WISQARS fatal injury and child mortality data. 2024. https://www.cdc.gov/injury/wisqars 

North Carolina Child Fatality Task Force. Annual report to the governor and General Assembly. 2024. 
https://sites.ncleg.gov/nccftf/wp-content/uploads/sites/13/2024/05/2024-CFTF-Annual-Report-FINAL.pdf 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. Infant mortality and child health indicators in North Carolina. 2025. 
https://www.ncdhhs.gov 

North Carolina State Center for Health Statistics. Child deaths in North Carolina: 2023 annual report. 2023. 
https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov 

Hospital Readmissions 
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. Hospital Readmissions Reduction Program. 2023. https://www.cms.gov/medicare/ 

payment/prospective-payment-systems/acute-inpatient-pps/hospital-readmissions-reduction-program-hrrp 

Jencks, Stephen F., Mark V. Williams, and Eric A. Coleman. Rehospitalizations among patients in the Medicare fee-for-service 
program. New England Journal of Medicine, vol. 360, no. 14, 2009, pp. 1418–1428. https://doi.org/10.1056/NEJMsa0803563 
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